
Notice of Meeting & Agenda 
November 9, 2022 

3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.  

Join Zoom Meeting:   

https://zoom.us/j/92047560254?pwd=YWJvbitjcFdkTGU4SVJ3eEFhVDNtQT09 

Meeting ID: 920 4756 0254 

Password: 926886 

Call In:  +1 669-900-6833 
*Vote Required

I. Introductions and Public Comment  (3:00) (Discussion)  

II. Approve Minutes of September 14, 2022*  (3:05) (Action*)  

III. Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, Belonging [DEIB]  (3:10) (Discussion/Action*) 

IV. Job Link Operations  (4:10) (Discussion) 

Overview/Regional Update

V. Adjourn  (5:00)

Open Meetings:  Except as expressly authorized under the Brown Act, all meetings are open to attendance 

by interested members of the public.   

If WIB members are unable to attend, please call (707)565-8500 prior to the meeting to leave a message 

stating you are unavailable. 

Meeting Materials:  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the WIB after distribution 

of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the WIB Administrative Office at 2227 

Capricorn Way, Suite 100, Santa Rosa during normal business hours.  

Accommodation: If you have a disability which requires the agenda materials to be in an alternative 

format or requires an interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please call  

(707) 565-8500 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, to facilitate arrangements for accommodation.

Page 1 of 64

https://zoom.us/j/92047560254?pwd=YWJvbitjcFdkTGU4SVJ3eEFhVDNtQT09


Auxiliary aids, services, and versions are available to individuals with disabilities upon request 

by calling (707) 565-8500. 

Sonoma County Workforce Investment Board 

DRAFT Minutes of September 14, 2022 

Members Present: Stephen Jackson, Robin Bartholow Ethan Brown, Erin Carlson, Susan 

Cooper, Brad Davis, Keith Dias, Paul Duranczyk, Kristina Holloway, 

Judy James, Scott Kincaid, Chris Knerr, John McEntagart, Anita 

Maldonado, Ken Sprague, George Steffensen, Ananda Sweet, and 

Pedro Toledo 

Absent: Judy Coffey, Nancy Emanuele, Brandy Evans, Steve Herrington, Roy 

Hurd, Michael Pickens, Thomas Stuebner, David Tam, Audra Verrier, 

Alena Wall, and David Wayte 

Other Attendees: Tracy Feick and Becky Sandoval 

Staff: Katie Greaves, Fabiola Garcia Almonaci, Nina Cheek, Kate Fosburgh, 

Sarah Lewis-Crow, John Paul, Michelle Revecho, Katie Stohlmann, 

Chris Willover, and Judy Oates   

*Attendees with asterisks arrived late or departed early.

I. Introductions and Public Comment

None.

II. Approve Minutes of July 13, 2022

Reviewed the minutes and action items of July 13, 2022.

Motion to approve the July 13, 2022 minutes: Ananda Sweet /s/ Erin Carlson.

(Stephen Jackson, Robin Bartholow Ethan Brown, Erin Carlson, Susan Cooper, Brad

Davis, Keith Dias, Paul Duranczyk, Kristina Holloway, Judy James, Scott Kincaid, Chris

Knerr, John McEntagart, Anita Maldonado, Ken Sprague, George Steffensen, Ananda

Sweet, and Pedro Toledo).  There were no “nay” votes.  Robin Bartholow abstained.  The

motion carried.

III. Job Link Operations

Regional Updates - Katie

Regional Equity Recovery Program Grant was applied for in partnership with six North

Page 2 of 64



Auxiliary aids, services, and versions are available to individuals with disabilities upon request 

by calling (707) 565-8500. 

Bay WIBs for 1.2M over three years.  The intent is to partner with community college 

system to drive more job seekers into various certificate and credentialing programs 

with a strong focus on the child development credential as a way to leverage and extend 

our reach on the apprenticeship proposal that was recently submitted by Santa Rosa 

Junior College.  We know we will receive some funding but have not heard back on the 

amount yet.   

Prison 2 Employment Grant in conjunction with Workforce Alliance of the North Bay and 

the Solano WIB which will be available this Fall.  We will receive some funding for this 

but have not heard back on the amount at this time.  

Breaking Barriers to Employment Grant is a new grant that was applied for in 

partnership with Goodwill, Department of Rehab, and Interfaith Shelter Network.  We 

are requesting $600K to provide housing case management services for individuals who 

are unhoused as well as an array of employment services and other social wraparound 

services specifically in support of our homeless employment.  We will update you when 

we hear about status updates.  

One Stop / Job Link - John 

We will be interviewing next week for our youth intern positions at Employment & 

Training doing office work supporting Job Link Operations.  We are planning for them to 

start working in October.  

Homeless Services Program:  We have had 80 referrals over the last year and a half 

directly form homeless services proved though the work group, and 30 of those 

individuals are now employed.  Of that only six stared in wage subsidy programs, the 

others were un-subsidized.  Those in the subsidized programs are moving towards 

regular permanent paid positions.  The team did a presentation of the program to the 

CalWORKs Training Academy and we are very excited with the recognition the program 

is receiving and the collaboration of homeless services providers and employment 

service providers to help people with what they need to move into income 

independence.      

Page 3 of 64



Auxiliary aids, services, and versions are available to individuals with disabilities upon request 

by calling (707) 565-8500. 

Chris Willover shared a success story of a client of a client they helped get from a 

shelter, to employed and now housed in a rental unit and fully employed.   

Business Services reported that unemployment is still relatively low and they have not 

seen a slowdown in job openings.  They are working with a number of different 

Chambers across the area to share information about subsidized employment programs 

and other free services we have available.   

Michelle Revecho reported the Job Link Steering Committee meets monthly and staff 

and partner agencies have been sharing information about their services and programs 

to learn about resources each has and then be able to refer customers from one partner 

to another, depending on the services needed.  On September 21 Community Action 

Partnership will be a presentation on their services.  The information sharing and 

knowledge of programs has been helpful to all.  

John reported Job Link now has a dedicated half time counselor taking on a workshop 

facilitation role. This will allow us to provide a more robust menu of workshops to job 

seekers in the near future in person and virtually.   

Q. The 50 of the 80 in the Homeless Program who are not yet housed and employed,

are there other barriers that are preventing them from getting employment?  What

services are they getting during their enrollment and engagement in the program?

A. One of the biggest challenges we are is communicating with them, reaching them and

being about to repeatedly reach out.  The mock interview days have been a service they

have used. They are also using our regular services including resume review, interview

coaching, soft skills, and case management services.

IV. Wrap Up

Stephen reminded the group that the second WIB DEIB training, Developing a Culture

of Belonging will be held today.  The second training, Becoming An Antiracist Board, will

be held in October.

Page 4 of 64



Auxiliary aids, services, and versions are available to individuals with disabilities upon request 

by calling (707) 565-8500. 

V. Adjourn 2:27 pm

Next meeting:  October 9, 2022 via Zoom

Page 5 of 64



DIVERSITY, EQUITY & 
INCLUSION EFFORTS

General WIB Meeting: November 9th, 2022

Page 6 of 64



Review of Set Priorities

• Focus on Equity: Create System Inclusivity & Accessibility. Expand access to 
WIOA programs and services for individuals who have historically been 
excluded from economic and social prosperity. 

• Ensure WIB, AJCC and partner staff attend trainings in Racial Equity, 
Diversity and Inclusion and look to how equity can be incorporated into 
workforce policies. 

• Actively working towards being an anti-racist board

Citation: Sonoma County WIB Workforce Development Plan 2021-2024

 
Page 7 of 64

https://sonomawib.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/SCWIB-FINAL-Local-Strategic-Workforce-Development-Plan-2021-2024.pdf


2021

Strategic Plan

October, 2021

OOE 
Presentation

January, 2022 

DEIB Overview, 
Break out 
groups & Poll 

September, 2022

Developing a 
Culture Of 
Belonging 

October, 2022

Becoming an 
Anti-racist 
Board

March, 2022

DEIB Ad-Hoc 
Committee 
Formed

N
ex

t S
te

ps
/A

ct
io

n

Timeline

Page 8 of 64



Goals

1. Develop a shared understanding of key racial 
equity concepts that affect local workforce.2

2. Build awareness at every level of our board of 
the distinction between institutional, 
structural, interpersonal, and individual 
racism. 2

3. Equip our board with an understanding of 
methods to create change.1

4. Develop the skills and competencies 
necessary for all board members and proxies 
to sensitively and productively engage in 
discussions about race and racism, including 
conversations that explore how race may be a 
significant factor in our relationships and 
interactions with our board and the people in 
the community our programs serve.

Objectives

1. Foundational racial equity terms, concepts 
and their definitions.

2. Four levels of racism: institutional, structural, 
interpersonal and individual.

3. Antiracism and what is required to support 
antiracism in the workforce.

4. Dominant/white supremacist culture 
characteristics and how these characteristics 
impact the workforce.

5. How race, privilege and power impact the 
work of a board.

6. An awareness of which leadership behaviors 
support a board culture of dignity and 
belonging.

1 Adopted from the HSD Racial Equity Commitment.
2 Adopted from the County Strategic Plan.

 
Page 9 of 64



Training # 1: 

Developing a Culture of Belonging

• Intersectionality

• Defined the four I’s of oppression

• Identity markers

• Check the representation of identities present in various spaces

• Ask yourselves: What does it reveal about us that we believe this group is authorized to make

decisions on behalf of those not represented here?

• When making a decision, ask yourselves: who will be most impacted by this decision? Are

they involved? If not, how can we get their input or better yet - their involvement?

Page 10 of 64



Image: Be the Change Consulting

Page 11 of 64



Survey Responses

 
Page 12 of 64



Page 13 of 64



 
Page 14 of 64



Page 15 of 64



• Reach out to more diverse business leaders

• Dig deeper and not superficially try to do things like name
POC to educate us. We need to individually do work and
come together to collectively do lasting work.

• Recruitment processes should be better streamlined and
simplified for everyone.

• Understand that the experience might not be there, but the
knowledge might.

• We need to think about how to improve our onboarding. In
addition to thinking about immediate onboarding when
someone first joins we could think about how we make them
feel intentional check-ins with new board members and
actively seek their input.

• Reach out and make a conscience effort to find board
members that have a diverse background.

Question: In order to create a stronger sense of belonging that will help us 
recruit and retain new diverse board members we need to...

Page 16 of 64



Training # 2: 

Becoming an Anti-Racist Board

Focus on Impact Rather Than Intent 

Speaking Order

Interrogate Your Resistance

Citation: the National Action Committee on the Status of Women International Perspectives: 
Women and Global Solidarity

"Antiracism is the active process of 
identifying and eliminating racism 

by changing systems, 
organizational structures, policies 

and practices and attitudes, so that 
power is redistributed and shared 

equitably." 

 
Page 17 of 64



Quantity Over Quality: Things that are measured are prioritized, 
examined and discussed. People’s emotional needs or attention to 
process are secondary to concrete outcomes.

Citation: Dismantling Racism: A Workbook for Social Change Groups, 
by Kenneth Jones and Tema Okun, ChangeWork, 2001

Dominant Culture Characteristics

Power Hoarding: The power to make or influence decisions is 
consolidated to a few.

Right to Comfort: Which makes it hard for us to seek out feedback. 
We surround ourselves in a bubble of folx just like us.

Image: Be the Change Consulting
Page 18 of 64



• What are your takeaways from training trainings?

• What do you think the WIB needs to take action on moving 
forward, and/or focus on as a organization?

• Next steps/ ideas?

Reflection: Where Do We Go From Here?

 
Page 19 of 64



Have questions or ideas?
Contact Us!

Katie Greaves, WIB Director
kgreaves@schsd.org 
(707)565-8501

Michelle Revecho, WIB Manager
mrevesho@schsd.org 
(707)565-5557

Judy Oates, WIB Secretary
joates@schsd.org 
(707)565-5557

 
Page 20 of 64



White Supremacy Culture – Still Here 

Tema Okun | May 2021 

For a more extensive exploration of this article, go to http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/ 

A Short History of the Original Article 

This article is an update of the original White Supremacy Culture article published in 1999. 
While I wrote the words on the pages that became the White Supremacy Culture article all those 
years ago, I want to make it clear that I do not consider the original article, or the website that is
an extension of the article, my work. I feel a sense of stewardship rather than of ownership. The 
article was informed by my decade of experience facilitating racial equity workshops and work at 
that time, starting with my original colleague the inestimable James Williams and followed by a 
12-year partnership with Kenneth Jones. I was deeply steeped in my own learning curve over the
course of that decade. In addition, I was fortunate to be mentored by Sharon Martinas, who was 
organizing the The Challenging White Supremacy Workshop series; Sharon was the one who 
advised me to include antidotes. I also attended a People's Institute for Survival and 
Beyond workshop in the Bay (one of many I was lucky to attend). This workshop was co-
facilitated by Daniel Buford, a lead trainer at PISAB at the time the original article was written. 
He was doing extensive research on white supremacy culture and linguistic racism and you will 
see the portions that he informed both on the original article and here marked by an asterisk. 

The original piece also built on the work of many others who informed the curriculum and 
training that Kenneth and I were leading at the time as well as colleagues in the work with us. 
They are listed in the end notes as well as on the website. 

I will also say that the original article was my one and only experience of producing something 
that came through me (see endnotes for the whole story). The original article, the updated 
website, and the work I continue to do is in honor and memory of Kenneth, who helped me 
become wise about many things and kept me honest about everything else. I love him and miss 
him beyond words. His laugh, his caring, his wisdom are with me always. 

This Update 

A lot of time has passed since the original article on White Supremacy Culture was published. 
While the article seems to be getting a lot of use in this time of resurgent anti-racist movement 
building, it badly needs updating and revising. For example, I (and colleagues) have come to see 
other central elements of white supremacy culture that need to be named: fear is an essential 
characteristic, as is the assumption of "qualified" attached to whiteness. Defensiveness needs to 
be broadened to include denial, which is included in the list in this current iteration. A class lens 

Page 21 of 64

http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/
http://www.cwsworkshop.org/
https://pisab.org/
http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 2 

and issues of intersectionality are important to address. And a caution against weaponization of 
the list seems critically important right now. 

I decided to update and revise the original article in the form of a website, which allows 
flexibility as well as the ability to link to so many who are doing important and groundbreaking 
work to help us understand how to navigate white supremacy culture. 

I want to be clear that the website and this article is offering one way of understanding white 
supremacy culture, not the way. Many people have written, spoken, offered brilliant wisdom 
about how white supremacy culture operates, both before and after the original article was 
published. May this be a small contribution to a larger understanding. 

This update leans heavily on those with whom I have been working in the decades since the 
original article was published. For a complete list of all those who have informed my work, please 
visit the website. For the purposes of this article specifically, please note the valued additions 
from the following wise and brilliant people who I am privileged to know: Bevelyn Ukah, Calvin 
Allen, Cristina Rivera Chapman, the late Cynthia Brown, Justin Robinson, Kari Points, Scot 
Nagakawa, Tami Forte-Logan, Vivette Jeffries-Logan, as well as these activist scholars and 
writers: Alice Walker, Kimberlé Crenshaw, and Parker Palmer. 

About White Supremacy 

The term white supremacy refers to the ways in which the ruling class elite or the power elite in 
the colonies of what was to become the United States used the pseudo-scientific concept of race 
to create whiteness and a hierarchy of racialized value in order to 

• disconnect and divide white people from Black, Indigenous, and People of Color
(BIPOC); 

• disconnect and divide Black, Indigenous, and People of Color from each other;
• disconnect and divide white people from other white people;
• disconnect and divide each and all of us from the earth, the sun, the wind, the water, the

stars, the animals that roam(ed) the earth; 
• disconnect and divide each of us from ourselves and from source (see below).

The power elite constructed white supremacy (and construct it still) to define who is fully human 
and who is not. 

Intersectionality 

The power elite constructed (and continues to construct) white supremacy to intersect 
with (thank you Kimberlé Crenshaw), support, reinforce and reproduce capitalism, class 
oppression, gender oppression, heterosexism, ableism, Christian hegemony, to name a few. 
These in turn function to support, reinforce, and reproduce white supremacy. So, for example, 
capitalism teaches us profit is more important than people while systematically advantaging those 
in the white group (although not equally). Classism teaches us the wealthy are deserving and the 

Page 22 of 64

https://alicewalkersgarden.com/
https://www.vox.com/the-highlight/2019/5/20/18542843/intersectionality-conservatism-law-race-gender-discrimination
http://www.couragerenewal.org/parker/
https://www.dictionary.com/e/acronyms/bipoc/
https://www.vox.com/the-highlight/2019/5/20/18542843/intersectionality-conservatism-law-race-gender-discrimination


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 3 

poor are to be blamed while reproducing racism in the disparate reproduction of wealth and 
deadly exploitation of labor. Sexism and heterosexism teach us white men are superior to women 
(and all "others"), gender binaries are "normal" while gender fluidity is threatening, with the 
degree of threat (targeting all who defy gender binaries) tied to race and racism. Christian 
hegemony teaches us that Christians (and a certain kind of white Christian at that) are divinely 
capable of shaping and defining reality for the rest of us. The power elite design these ideologies 
to teach us who is valuable and human and who is not in the name of power and profit. 

In other words, white supremacy operates in collaboration with other oppressions; they reinforce 
and reproduce each other. 

The power elite constructed (and continues to construct) white supremacy to serve capitalism, to 
commodify and dehumanize all living things in the name of power and profit for a few at the 
expense of the many. And they did this well (and still do), and they did this cleverly (and still 
do), constructing white supremacy to be ever more adaptable. So while historically those who 
benefit most from these constructions were and are white, male, owning class, gender 
conforming, heterosexual, able-bodied, Christian, English speaking ... (etc.) ... white supremacy 
has evolved to constantly extend an invitation to many of us, inviting us to join when assimilation 
(or joining) serves the ability of the power elite to profit at our expense. 

This construction of white supremacy is alive and well. For just one example, we are living 
through a period where the U.S. Republican Party is overtly and boldy claiming a white 
supremacy, autocratic agenda. For more about this, sign up for Scot Nakagawa's online 
newsletter. 

White Supremacy is a Project of Conditioning

White supremacy is a project of psychic conditioning and toxic belonging. 

I have found my own participation in this ideology both enraging and heartbreaking. What I 
know is that the invitation to join is toxic to all who say yes. When I say yes, when we say yes, we 
visit this toxicity on others and everybody suffers, including us. And when I say no, when we say 
no - for we have among us those who have said no from the very beginning - when we say no, we 
discover the secret of joy (thank you Alice Walker). 

White Supremacy is a Project of Colonization

White supremacy is a project of colonization - a project of "appropriating a place or domain for 
one's use" (according to the Oxford Dictionary). White supremacy colonizes our minds, our 
bodies, our psyches, our spirits, our emotions ... as well as the land and the water and the sky and 
the air we breathe. White supremacy tells us who has value, who doesn't, what has value, what 
doesn't in ways that reinforce a racial hierarchy of power and control that dis-eases and destroys 
all it touches. When I say, as I do elsewhere, that our goal is to get free, what I mean is that we 
are engaged in the collective project of freeing ourselves from this project of colonization. We are 

 
Page 23 of 64

https://scotnakagawa.substack.com/
https://alicewalkersgarden.com/


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 4 

decolonizing ourselves - our minds, our bodies, our psyches, our spirits, our emotions, our work, 
our homes, and the land, water, sky, and air. 

White Supremacy Culture 

Culture reflects the beliefs, values, norms, and standards of a group, a community, a town, a 
state, a nation. White supremacy culture is the widespread ideology baked into the beliefs, 
values, norms, and standards of our groups (many if not most of them), our communities, our 
towns, our states, our nation, teaching us both overtly and covertly that whiteness holds value, 
whiteness is value. It teaches us that Blackness is not only valueless but also dangerous and 
threatening. It teaches us that Indigenous people and communities no longer exist, or if they do, 
they are to be exoticized and romanticized or culturally appropriated as we continue to violate 
treaties, land rights, and humanity. It teaches us that people south of the border are "illegal." It 
teaches us that Arabs are Muslim and that Muslim is "terrorist." It teaches us that people of 
Chinese and Japanese descent are both indistinguishable and threatening as the reason for Covid. 
It pits other races and racial groups against each other while always defining them as inferior to 
the white group. 

White supremacy culture is reflected in the current realities of disproportionate and 
systemic harm and violence directed towards BIPOC people and communities in all aspects of 
our national life – health, education, employment, incarceration, policing, the law, the 
environment, immigration, agriculture, food, housing. We would not allow any of the ways in 
which our society prioritizes profit over people if we did not have dominant cultural beliefs that 
make normal what is deeply and alarmingly inhumane.

White Supremacy Culture Comes After All of Us

We are all swimming in the waters of white supremacy culture. We are all navigating this 
culture, regardless of our racial identity. We are not all affected in the same ways – some of us are 
encouraged to join and collude without awareness that an invitation has been extended, some are 
invited to participate at the cost of separating ourselves from our communities and families, some 
are shamed because we can never fully join no matter how hard we try, some are denied any 
invitation in order to be targeted or exploited or violated. 

White supremacy culture is constantly encouraging all of us in all our racial identities to 
cooperate and collude. Because we all live in this white supremacy culture, these characteristics 
have the potential to show up in the attitudes and behaviors of all of us, particularly as we strive 
to survive and gain a foothold in institutions and fields that either overtly or covertly adopt white 
supremacy culture values. 

White supremacy culture always operates to target Black, Indigenous, and People of Color 
communities and individuals while in theory “benefitting” white communities and people. My 
current position is that this culture and its characteristics are toxic to all of us. They are 
damaging because they are self-perpetuating and promote white supremacy thinking and 

Page 24 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 5 

behavior, which is the source of our social, mental, emotional, and material disconnect. I am not 
suggesting that the harm white supremacy culture inflicts on white communities or white 
individuals is similar to or proportional to or comparable to the harm it inflicts on BIPOC 
communities and people. I am suggesting that white supremacy culture harms us all. 

White supremacy culture invites white people into a silencing, a numbing, and a disconnection 
from our basic humanity in service of a false safety based on the idea that those of us who are 
white are both better and normal. Being encouraged into this ideology might offer short-term 
satisfaction and material gain, yet I agree with public theologian Ruby Sales, who tells us that 
“whiteness is a death sentence.” We see this death sentence reflected in the extremely high 
addiction, suicide, and depression rates in the white community. The generational legacy and 
price of gain based on the psychic, mental, physical, and spiritual violation of others is a heavy 
one. 

White supremacy culture also promises to reward BIPOC communities and people who collude 
in an effort to survive; the encouragement to assimilate and adapt to these characteristics often 
promises the illusion of safety while in reality rarely doing so. Whatever safety is offered can be 
and is bought at the expense of authentic relationship with community and self. Whatever safety 
is offered is ripped away whenever a community or person begins to speak and act with integrity 
about the racist realities of white supremacy culture. 

One of the ways that white supremacy culture comes after us is in how we fail to distinguish 
between tools and weapons. Please take a minute to read the end notes, which include a section 
where I ask you to avoid weaponizing this list. 

Refusing to Comply

The good news is that while white supremacy culture informs us, it does not define us. It is a 
construct, and anything constructed can be deconstructed and replaced. We are not victims; our 
history is both witness to and record of how many of us refuse(d) to cooperate, how many of us 
are brave and bold enough to vision a future we often do not live to see. We honor our radical 
freedom fighting ancestors, those on the front lines, those whose names we will never know, 
those who fed the babies and swept the floors and offered nurture while committed to living with 
mutual dignity, respect, and love. We are here because of them. 

Given how others have shown us the way, the good news is that we can and must be equally 
brave, bold, and fierce ancestors for those who come with and after us.  

A Word about Class 

The original list of white supremacy characteristics is really a list that defines and expresses white 
middle and owning class values and norms. White middle- and owning-class power brokers 
embody these characteristics as a way of defining what is "normal" and even "aspirational" or 
desired – the way we should all want to be. We know this because of how those who do not 

 
Page 25 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 6 

belong to the white middle and owning classes are required to adopt these characteristics in order 
to assimilate into this desired norm (when such assimilation is allowed). As a result, many poor 
and working class white people report they have not and do not internalize some of these norms. 
For example, fear of open conflict does not reflect the lived experience or value of all people in 
the white group. 

These characteristics are not meant to describe all white people. They are meant to describe the 
norms of white middle-class and owning class culture, a culture we are all required to navigate 
regardless of our multiple identities. 

I also want to acknowledge that none of these characteristics stand alone; they intersect and 
intertwine in devastating ways. I have combined some that act as best buddies: one right way and 
perfectionism, for example, and right to comfort with fear of open conflict. 

One of the ways that white supremacy comes after us is how we internalize these characteristics 
into our very personalities. So, for example, people often ask me, when I am facilitating a class or 
workshop - isn't the perfectionism you just admitted to simply part of your personality? "Isn't 
that just who you are?" they ask. My response is "yes it is." My personality is deeply informed by 
my embodiment as an upper class cisgender white woman. 

White supremacy culture would have us believe that we can (and should) pinpoint our 
motivations or actions to determine if they are based on our racism (those of us who are white) or 
some other aspect of our personality. The idea seems to be that if we "prove" our perfectionism 
isn't motivated by racism, then it's "all right," when in fact, our perfectionism is never all right. 
Thank goodness our commitment to our own growth and development as anti-racist white 
people allows us to see the ways in which our internalizations of superiority warp our 
relationships not just with BIPOC people and communities, but with other white people and 
with ourselves. This is the magic of racial justice work. Our commitment to racial justice is a 
healing practice for all aspects of our lives. 

_______________________________________________ 

THE CHARACTERISTICS 

The invitation for this and every characteristic is to investigate how each and all characteristics 
and qualities lead to disconnection (from each other, ourselves, and all living things) and how the 
antidotes can support us to reconnect. If you read these characteristics and qualities as blaming or 
shaming, perhaps they are particularly alive for you. If you find yourself becoming defensive as 
you read them, lean into the gift of defensiveness and ask yourself what you are defending. The 
description of these characteristics are meant to help us see our culture so that we can transgress 
and transform and build culture that truly supports us individually and collectively. Breathe into 
that intention if you can. 

Page 26 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 7 

Fear 

White supremacy culture's number one strategy is to make us afraid. All of the characteristics 
listed here are driven by fear. We fear not being good enough, not being enough, not being 
lovable. When we are afraid, whatever the reason, especially when we don't have the skills to 
hold that fear, we are easily manipulated by any false yet powerful sense of safety. The promised 
safety is false because it is always based on the abuse and misuse of power that shows up as 
everything from microaggressions to deadly violence directed at whoever or whatever we are told 
to be afraid of. Often it is the racialized other. Often it is ourselves. 

White supremacy, white supremacy culture, and racism are fear-based. White supremacy uses 
fear to disconnect us in multiple ways, to ... 

• disconnect us from each other across racial identities,
• disconnect us from each other within our racial groups,
• disconnect us from ourselves,
• disconnect us from the earth, wind, and sky, and all the creatures that roam the earth,
• disconnect us from source, god, creativity ... or whatever you call the wisdom we carry

inside us.

White supremacy, white supremacy culture, and racism use fear to divide and conquer, always in 
the service of profit and power for a few at the expense of the many. 

White supremacy culture cultivates our fear of not belonging, of not being enough. Living in fear 
that we are not enough, white supremacy culture teaches us to fear others (or hate others) in an 
attempt, sometimes overt, sometimes unspoken, to prove to ourselves that we are ok. An easy 
way to prove we are ok is to point the finger at all those who are not. An easy way to belong to 
each other is to hate and fear all the others who do not (thank you Cristina Rivera Chapman). 

If we want to defeat white supremacy, then we have to get skilled at meeting our fear(s) so that 
we are not manipulated by those who delight in seeing us go after each other (and ourselves) 
while they maintain power and control. If we want to transgress white supremacy, we have to get 
good at belonging - belonging to ourselves and welcoming each other into belonging. This 
requires emotional maturity and responsibility, mutual accountability and support, and knowing 
ourselves well enough to know when we can step up to belonging and when we need to step back 
and take care of ourselves.  

This is not easy. This is necessary. And the prize is belonging - belonging to beloved 
community. 

The antidotes to fear include first and foremost naming it when it arises, whether in a group or 
in us individually. We must collectively and individually develop skills to meet our fear, sit with 
our fear, name our fear, and work to avoid letting fear drive our beliefs, actions, and decisions. I 
am so excited by the growing understanding of somatics in navigating fear and trauma, which is 
one of the ways we can begin to change our relationship to the fears that we hold in our 

 
Page 27 of 64

https://earthseedlandcoop.org/


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 8 

collective and individual bodies. Meditation, silence, music, dancing, poetry, drawing, singing, 
resting, brainstorming, compassion ... we have lots of options for how to meet and sit with our 
fear. If you and your community do not yet have a fear practice, begin to strategize what that 
might look like for you. Luckily for us, resources abound from Resmaa Menaken’s My 
Grandmother’s Hands to Adrienne Marie Brown’s Pleasure Activism to a wide array of meditation 
and body  movement options. Choose options that are grounded in respect for lineage and 
movement building. 

Perfectionism*, One Right Way, Paternalism, and Objectivity* 

Perfectionism shows up as:
• little or no appreciation expressed among people for the work that others are doing; when

appreciation is expressed, it is often or usually directed to those who get most of the 
credit anyway; 

• more common is to point out either how the person or work is inadequate;
• or even more common, to talk to others about the inadequacies of a person or their work

without ever talking directly to them; 
• mistakes are seen as personal, i.e. they reflect badly on the person making them as

opposed to being seen for what they are – mistakes; 
• making a mistake is confused with being a mistake, doing wrong with being wrong;
• the person making the "mistake" or doing something "wrong" rarely participates in

defining what doing it "right" looks like or whether a "mistake" actually occurred; 
• little time, energy, or money is put into reflection or identifying lessons learned that can

improve practice, in other words there is little or no learning from mistakes, and/or little 
investigation of what is considered a mistake and why; 

• a tendency to identify what’s wrong; little ability to identify, name, define, and appreciate
what’s right; 

• often internally felt, in other words the perfectionist fails to appreciate their own good
work, more often pointing out their faults or ‘failures,’ focusing on inadequacies and 
mistakes rather than learning from them; the person works with a harsh and constant 
inner critic that has internalized the standards set by someone else; 

• linked to the characteristic of one right way, where the demand for perfection assumes
that we know what perfection is while others are doing it wrong or falling short. 

Another word about perfectionism: There is no relationship between perfectionism and 
excellence. Perfectionism is the belief that we can be perfect or perform perfectly. The question 
has to be asked: according to who? Who decides what perfect is? 

Perfectionism is the conditioned belief and attitude that we can be perfect based on a standard or 
set of rules that we did not create and that we are led to believe will prove our value. 
Perfectionism is the conditioned belief and attitude that we can determine whether others are 
showing up as perfect and demand or expect that they do so. White supremacy culture uses 
perfectionism to preserve power and the status quo. As long as we are striving to be perfect  

Page 28 of 64

https://www.powells.com/searchresults?keyword=my+grandmother%27s+hands
https://www.powells.com/book/pleasure-activism-9781849353267


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 9 

according to someone else's rules, we have less energy and attention to question those rules and 
to remember what is truly important. 

We can be perfectionist in our social justice circles when we assume or believe there is a perfect 
way to do something and we know what it is. When we look more closely at our own 
perfectionism, we see that the perfectionist tendency is always in service of our own power or the 
current power structure. We might be fighting power out in the world but when we are 
perfectionist about how we do that, we preserve a toxic power structure internally.  

Excellence has more potential to be defined by and for us. We can talk about what we think 
excellence is and hold ourselves and each other accountable to a shared and collectively defined 
standard of excellence. We can rock the boat with excellence. We can care for each other with 
excellence. We can write and lead and work and teach and cook with excellence. We can forgive 
with excellence. Excellence requires making and learning from mistakes. 

And even as I distinguish perfection from excellence, I also want to add that we don't have to 
strive for excellence either (thank you Bevelyn Ukah). Sometimes we just want to have fun, try 
something out. Sometimes, often times, we arrive at a new way of thinking or doing that comes 
from playfulness and/or a lack of striving towards any particular standard. And even excellence is 
in the eye of the beholder. 

And here's the main point; we are already perfect. We are made perfect. We do not have to 
prove our perfection to anyone, even to ourselves (no matter what our inner voices may be telling 
us). We may have lost touch with how perfect we are and when we do, our perfectionism 
becomes a way to try and prove to ourselves and others that we are worthy. But we are already 
worthy. We are already invaluable. No proof necessary.  

One right way shows up as:
• the belief there is one right way to do things and once people are introduced to the right

way, they will see the light and adopt it;
• when a person or group does not adapt or change to "fit" the one right way, then those

defining or upholding the one right way assume something is wrong with the other, those
not changing, not with us;

• similar to a missionary who sees only value in their beliefs about what is good rather than
acknowledging value in the culture of the communities they are determined to "convert"
to the right way of thinking and/or the right way of living.

Paternalism shows up as:
• those holding power control decision-making and define things (standards, perfection,

one right way);
• those holding power assume they are qualified to (and entitled to) define standards and

the one right way as well as make decisions for and in the interests of those without
power;

Page 29 of 64



 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 10 

• those holding power often don’t think it is important or necessary to understand the 
viewpoint or experience of those for whom they are making decisions, often labeling 
those for whom they are making decisions as unqualified intellectually, emotionally, 
spiritually, or physically;  

• those without power understand they do not have it and understand who does; 
• those without power are marginalized from decision-making processes and as a result 

have limited access to information about how decisions get made and who makes what 
decisions; at the same time they are completely familiar with the impact of those 
decisions on them;  

• those without power may internalize the standards and definitions of those in power and 
act to defend them, assimilate into them, and/or collude with those in power to 
perpetuate them in the belief that this will help them to belong to and/or gain power; 
they may have to do this to survive. 

 
Objectivity shows up as: 

• the belief that there is such a thing as being objective or ‘neutral’; 
• the belief that emotions are inherently destructive, irrational, and should not play a role in 

decision-making or group process; 
• assigning value to the "rational" while invalidating and/or shaming the "emotional" when 

often if not always the "rational" is emotion wrapped up in fancy logic and language; 
• requiring people to think in a linear (logical) fashion and ignoring 

or invalidating/shaming those who think in other ways; 
• impatience with any thinking that does not appear ‘logical’ or 'rational' in ways that 

reinforce existing power structures; in other words, those in power can be illogical, angry, 
emotional without being disregarded while those without power must always present 
from a 'rational' position; 

• refusal to acknowledge the ways in which 'logical' thinking and/or decision-making is 
often a cover for personal emotions and/or agendas often based in fear of losing power, 
face, or comfort; 

• refusal to acknowledge the ways in which objectivity is used to protect power and the 
status quo. 

 
Antidotes to one perfectionism, one right way, and paternalism include: 

• develop a culture of appreciation; take time to make sure that everyone's work and efforts 
are appreciated;  

• develop a learning community or organization, where the stated expectation is that 
everyone will make mistakes and those mistakes offer opportunities for learning; 

• create a culture of support that recognizes how mistakes sometimes lead to positive 
results; 

• create a culture of inquiry about what constitutes the "right way" and what defines a 
"mistake"; 

• build in an understanding that every approach yields unintended consequences and even 
the most strategically made decisions will have unanticipated consequences; 

 
Page 30 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 11 

• separate the person from the mistake; when offering feedback, always speak to what went
well before offering critical feedback; when a mistake is jointly or collectively
acknowledged, ask for specific suggestions about what the person or group has learned
and how we would do things differently moving forward;

• realize that being your own worst critic does not actually improve the work, often
contributes to low morale among the group, and does not help you or the group realize
the benefit of learning from mistakes; if you are constantly criticizing yourself in your
relationships with others, you focus the attention on you, on support for you, rather than
on the issue at hand;

• accept there are many ways to get to the same goal; once a group has made a decision
about what to do, honor that decision and see what you and the community or
organization learn from making that decision, even and especially if it is not the way you
would have chosen;

• work on developing the ability to notice when you become defensive and/or insistent
about doing something your way and do everything you can to take a breath; allow
yourself room to consider how a different path or paths might improve your approach
and/or offer you something you really need;

• look for the tendency for a group or a person to keep pushing the same point over and
over out of a belief that there is only one right way and then name it;

• when working with communities from a different culture than yours or your organization,
be clear that you have some learning to do about the communities’ ways of doing; assume
that you or your organization can't possibly know what’s best for a community in
isolation from meaningful relationships with that community;

• make sure that everyone knows and understands the decision-making hierarchy in the
community and/or organization (transparency);

• make sure everyone knows and understands their level of responsibility and authority in
the organization;

• avoid making decisions in the absence of those most affected by those decisions or, said
more proactively, always include those most affected in the brainstorming and decision-
making;

• support people at all levels of power to understand how power operates, their level of
power, what holding power responsibly looks like, and how to collectively resist and heal
from internalized tendencies to hoard and defend power.

Antidotes to objectivity include:
• realize that everybody has a world view and world view affects the way we understand the

world;
• realize this is true for you too; you are not "objective," you are steeped in your own world

view and if it is the dominant world view, realize how that world view includes the belief
that it has the capacity to be objective;

• support yourself and your group to sit with discomfort when people are expressing
themselves in ways which are not familiar to you;

• support yourself and your group to sit with discomfort when people are sharing points of
view or lived experiences that are not familiar to you;

Page 31 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 12 

• understand that emotional intelligence is real and valuable; work to become more
emotionally intelligent;

• assume that everybody has a good reason for what they are feeling and your job is to
understand that reason and how it connects to their position, particularly if you are the
one with more formal or informal power;

• ask yourself and/or the group what a situation might look like from the point of view of
those not present; better yet, develop authentic relationships with those whose world view
and/or experience could and will inform your world view;

• engage in the simple act of using "I" statements, which leads us to claim our own
experience rather than generalizing from our experience in ways that can exclude those
who have a different experience or perspective (thank you Cristina Rivera Chapman);

• get curious about sources of information and stories, both to insure that those who are
often overlooked as sources get lifted up and recognized and also to insure that those who
claim credit are grounded in lived experience and social justice values (thank you Cristina
Rivera Chapman).

Qualified 

I have added the characteristic of qualified to the list of characteristics of white supremacy 
culture. This particular characteristic is internalized primarily by middle and owning class white 
people, formally educated, who are taught by the culture that they (in this case referring to 
people like me who live in these identities) are qualified and even duty bound to fix, save, and set 
straight the world (thank you Parker Palmer). Closely aligned with dominant mainstream 
Christian ideology that teaches a Christian duty to convert the "heathen," the "savage," the 
"impure," this characteristic is particularly violent both psychically and physically in its 
determination to ignore and/or erase the culture, wisdom, genius, joy of people and communities 
being "saved" while seizing their land, labor, architecture, music, food, and other material goods 
to commodify for profit.  

I want to stress that while the intention to fix, save, and set straight is often overt, the 
deviousness of this characteristic is how strongly white middle and owning class educated people 
can internalize and assume their own inherent qualifications to "improve" whatever is in front of 
them that is "broken" without acknowledging or seeing their role in breaking it. This 
internalized assumption becomes an unnamed way of being, a conditioned impulse to "help" 
others out of a what feels like a benign sense that they know the right way, the best way with 
little or no understanding of how limited they really are.  

Examples of this characteristic are all around us. Academia defines "the classics" as all things 
Roman and Greek and male, while the word "classic" means that which is judged over a period 
of time to be of the highest quality and outstanding. And so with the simple use of a word to 
describe a body of work, a whole category of knowledge assigns superiority to a very limited body 
of knowing and being, consigning other ways of knowing and being as "less than" while rarely 
recognizing other cultural and community-based ways of knowing at all. Examples include how 

Page 32 of 64

https://earthseedlandcoop.org/
http://www.couragerenewal.org/parker/


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 13 

so many white people lead, make decisions, and define reality for BIPOC and poor communities, 
from Congress and its policymaking to funders and their assessment of who and what is 
deserving to whole fields that overtly or subtly assume they can and should make decisions that 
impact people and communities with whom they have no real relationship.  

In my classrooms, I hear BIPOC faculty and students tell stories over and over again about how 
their white colleagues continually question their very presence, how these colleagues equate their 
race with "not qualified," and assume their inclusion is a "watering down" of standards. BIPOC 
faculty and students have to navigate overt and subtle accusations of being admitted simply to 
satisfy an affirmative action requirement. They have to navigate overt and subtle accusations of 
playing the race card or making everything about race if they decide to speak out. At the same 
time, white faculty and students can and do assume their qualifications, often giving the benefit 
of the doubt to others who are white, even and especially if they have little or no commitment to 
or experience living into a racial equity practice. We assume, those of us who are white and 
middle and upper class and educated, that we are "race neutral" when our very ignorance means 
that we are daily reproducing racism. 

The antidotes to this characteristic include, first and foremost, knowing ourselves so that we 
become skilled at catching our internalized assumptions about our own qualified-ness. We must 
learn to question and get comfortable with the limits of our knowing. We must learn to prioritize 
relationships over being right (thank you Rev. Tami Forte Logan). We must learn to lean into 
the racial equity principles of collective action and accountability. We must learn to let go of the 
need to fix, save, and set straight in the acknowledgement that we are at our best when we are 
"with" others (and ourselves). 

I use the word "must" with great deliberation here. The internalized assumption that I know best 
is, in my experience, one of the most harmful internalizations that I carry. The assumption that I 
know best leads me to become defensive when my "knowing" is challenged, fills my body with 
anxiety and dread at having to know what's best even as underneath the anxiety and dread I am 
aware that I don't and can't really know. The assumption that I know best brings a sense of 
despair when I am confronted with my own not knowing. The assumption I know best 
disconnects me from everyone, for no one wants to be in the company of a know it all, 
particularly when it is so clear to others what I don't know at all. 

I remember how several years ago a friend told me that I wasn't a very good teacher. She shared 
this with me, I think, in an effort to "help" me (in her own assumptions about being qualified to 
make this judgment about my teaching). I am not sure if she knew (or even if I knew) how 
attached I was to my identity as more than just a good teacher but one of the very best teachers. 
By whose standards, I cannot say. I do know that when she told me, very matter-of-factly, that I 
wasn't doing a good job in a class that she was attending, I was devastated. I obsessed about her 
accusation, for that's what it felt like, for days and weeks after, thinking of all the ways she was 
definitely and absolutely wrong and fuming that she could be so heartless and rude. I kept 
thinking about it and thinking about it, my mind racing like a hamster on a wheel trying to get 
away from this idea that I was a bad teacher. Finally, in an attempt to alleviate my anxiety, I took 

 
Page 33 of 64

https://www.faith4justiceasheville.org/about


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 14 

a long walk. I was visiting friends in Brooklyn at the time and I walked block after city block, my 
mind full of defensive thoughts and denials. Finally, stopping at a red light and waiting to cross, 
I decided to consider what might happen if I allowed myself to believe that what she said was 
true. And so I did. I decided to admit to myself I was a bad teacher. Once I allowed that 
thought, I took it further - I wasn't just a bad teacher, I was a terrible teacher, one of the worst 
precisely because I had been so convinced that I was one of the best. As I kept allowing the 
possibility of my own inadequacy, I started to notice that underneath the story of my own 
badness, deep in my gut, I could feel a tiny sense of relief. I brought my attention to the feeling 
because it was such a surprise. As I focused on it, the relief grew. As it expanded, I noticed, with 
a start, the relief was about no longer having to hold onto this idea that I was one of the best. I 
could finally let go of this story. I could just admit that sometimes I was a very good teacher and 
sometimes I wasn't and mostly I was just human, glory and warts and genius and faults and all. A 
sense of relief flooded my body and I felt free - free from the need to be the best, free from the 
need to be the worst. I became a teacher like any other teacher. And I can tell you that I became, 
as a result of that letting go, a much better teacher after that. I still prefer to do well rather than 
falter and that's ok too. 

I am not saying that we shouldn’t claim our wisdom. I also have the experience of giving away 
my “knowing” too easily, particularly when challenged by people who are skilled at insisting their 
way of knowing and their content knowledge is superior to mine. I want us to claim what we 
know and how we know, particularly if and when we are standing up for wisdom mined from the 
ways in which life offers learning from our lived experience in relationship with others, from our 
suffering, from our efforts to know ourselves as the racialized beings we are. 

I am talking here about the ways those of us who are white internalize the sense that we know 
when we actually don’t. This internalization that we are qualified, that we know best, that we can 
fix and save and set straight, is actually deeply harmful to those of us who hold it. We can never 
live up to knowing what is best all the time or even most of the time. Even when we think we 
know what's best, if we are honest, we will find ourselves surprised by the unintended 
consequences and unanticipated twists of this life. We know deep inside where authentic 
knowing resides that our own insistence about how right we are makes our bodies tense as we 
hide our fear of finding out we might not be, which makes us insist even more that we know 
what we couldn't possibly and on it goes. 

Just saying. 

Either/Or and the Binary* 

This characteristic explores our cultural assumption that we can and should reduce the 
complexity of life and the nuances of our relationships with each other and all living things into 
either/or, yes or no, right or wrong in ways that reinforce toxic power. 

Page 34 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 15 

Either/or and the binary shows up as:
• Positioning or presenting options or issues as either/or — good/bad, right/wrong, with

us/against us; 
• Little or no sense of the possibilities of both/and;
• Trying to simplify complex things, for example believing that poverty is simply the result

of lack of education; 
• Closely linked to perfectionism because binary thinking makes it difficult to learn from

mistakes or accommodate conflict; 
• Conflict and an increased sense of urgency, as people feel they have to make decisions to

do either this or that, with no time or encouragement to consider alternatives, particularly 
those which may require more time or resources; 

• A strategy used by those with a clear agenda or goal to push those who are still thinking
or reflecting to make a choice between ‘a’ or ‘b’ without acknowledging a need for time 
and creativity to come up with more options; 

• A strategy used to pit oppressions against each other rather than to recognize the ways in
which racism and classism intersect, the ways in which both intersect with heterosexism 
and agism and other categories of oppression. 

Antidotes or suggestions for how to show up in more connecting and healing ways include:
• Notice when you or others use ‘either/or’ language and make time to come up with more

than two alternatives;
• Notice when you or others are simplifying complex issues, particularly when the stakes

seem high or an urgent decision needs to be made;
• When urgency arises and binary thinking emerges, slow down and encourage people to

take a pause, a breath, restate the goal, and dive deeper into alternatives;
• When you or others are faced with an urgent decision, take a break and offer some

breathing room to think creatively and allow intuitive wisdom to arise;
• Avoid making decisions under extreme pressure and work to distinguish what is actual

pressure and what is pressure that you or others are creating;
• Avoid trying to assign a single cause to a problem or a challenge; acknowledge the ways

in which oppressions intersect and reinforce each other as well as the ways in which
oppression can be operating at the interpersonal, institutional and cultural levels.

Progress is Bigger/More and Quantity over Quality* 

These characteristics explore our cultural assumption that the goal is always to be/do/get more 
and be/do/get bigger. This leads to an emphasis on what we can "objectively" measure - how well 
we are doing at being/doing/getting more - as more valuable than the quality of our relationships 
to all living beings. 

Progress is narrowly defined as bigger and more; it shows up as:
• how we define success (success is always bigger, more);

Page 35 of 64



 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 16 

• an organization that assumes the goal is to grow - add staff, add projects, or serve more 
people regardless of how well they can serve them; raise more money, or gain more 
influence and power for its own sake - all without regard to the organization's mission or 
especially the people and/or living beings that the organization is in relationship with; 

• gives no value, not even negative value, to its cost; for example, increased accountability 
to funders as the budget grows in ways that leave those served exploited, excluded, or 
underserved as we focus on how many we are serving instead of quality of service or 
values created by the ways in which we serve; 

• little or no ability to consider the cost of growth in social, emotional, psychic, embodied, 
spiritual, and financial realms; 

• a narrow focus on numbers (financial, people, geography, power) without an ability to 
value processes (relationships), including cost to the human and natural environment; 

• valuing those who have "progressed" over those who "have not" - where progress is 
measured in degrees, grades, money, power, status, material belongings - in ways that 
erase lived experience and wisdom/knowledge that is invisibilized - tending, cleaning, 
feeding, nurturing, caring for, raising up, supporting (thank you Bevelyn Ukah); 

• focus on getting bigger (in size, transactional power, numbers) leading to little or no 
ability to consider the cost of getting big in social, emotional, psychic, embodied, 
spiritual, and financial realms (thank you Bevelyn Ukah). 

 
Quantity over quality shows up as: 

• most or all resources directed toward producing quantitatively measurable goals; 
• things that can be counted are more highly valued than things that cannot, for example 

numbers of people attending a meeting, newsletter circulation, money raised and spent 
are valued more than quality of relationships, democratic decision-making, ability to 
constructively deal with conflict, morale and mutual support; 

• little or no value attached to process in the internalized belief that if it can’t be measured, 
it has no value; 

• discomfort with emotion and feelings; 
• little or no understanding that when there is a conflict between content (the agenda 

of the meeting) and process (people’s need to be heard or engaged), process will prevail 
(for example, you may get through the agenda, but if you haven’t paid attention to 
people’s need to be heard, the decisions made at the meeting are undermined and/or 
disregarded); 

• connected to perfectionism, one right way, I'm the only one, and right to comfort because 
of the ways in which process, which cannot be numerically measured, requires emotional 
presence and intelligence whereas product, when it can be numerically measured, feels 
"safe" and controllable; 

• short-term thinking, urgency thinking, either/or thinking in the consuming effort to 
meet often unrealistic quantitative goals (numbers). 

 
Antidotes include: 

• honoring the ancient Haudenosaunee (Iroquois) philosophy that the decisions we make 
today should result in a sustainable world seven generations into the future; 

 
Page 36 of 64

https://www.haudenosauneeconfederacy.com/values/


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 17 

• insure that any cost/benefit analysis includes all the costs, not just the financial ones, for
example the cost in morale, the cost in credibility, the cost in relationship to living
beings, the cost in the use of resources;

• include process goals in your planning, for example make sure that your goals speak to
how you want to do your work, not just what you want to do;

• ask those you work with and for to establish goals and evaluate performance holistically;
for one example, set both content and process goals (what you do and how you do it)
aligned with the values of the organization and/or community;

• make sure you and/or your community or organization has a values statement that
expresses the ways in which you want to do your work; create this as a living document
that people use in their day to day work;

• look for ways to measure process goals (for example if you have a goal of mutually
respectful relationships, think about ways you can measure how you are living into that
goal);

• learn to recognize those times when you need to go off the planned agenda in order to
address people’s underlying concerns with the knowledge that doing so will result in a
more solid product in the long term;

• distinguish between growth, which is necessary and organic, and the conditioned desire
for "more" - more stuff, more transactional power, more people, more ... for its own sake;

• consider adding measures that keep you grounded in what's important - how many times
did we laugh together today? how many times did we express gratitude? how many times
did we allow silence? how many times did we allow dissent?

Worship of the Written Word 

This characteristic explores our cultural habit of honoring only what is written and only what is 
written to a narrow standard, even when what is written is full of misinformation and lies. 
Worship of the written word includes erasure of the wide range of ways we communicate with 
each other and all living things. 

I want to acknowledge that this characteristic is one that angers many people who believe that I 
am saying that worship of the written word is the same as the ability to write well. They claim I 
am implying that BIPOC people and communities cannot achieve a high standard of written 
expression (whatever standard of "high" might be in the reader's mind). They believe I am 
suggesting that if worshipping the written word is a white supremacy culture value, then only 
white people are capable of writing well. This is not what I mean. This characteristic has to do 
with how white supremacy culture requires things to be written down, on its own terms, in order 
to preserve power. 

For example: The U.S. invaded Mexico in 1846 to start what would become known as the 
Mexican-American War; the War ended with the Treaty of Guadelupe Hidalgo two years later. 
The treaty transferred over 55% of Mexican land to the U.S. (present-day Arizona, California, 
New Mexico, Texas, and parts of Colorado, Nevada, and Utah). The treaty promised to protect 

Page 37 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 18 

the lands, language and culture of the Mexican people and communities living in the ceded 
territory, but Congress substituted a “Protocol,” which required people of Mexican heritage to 
prove "legitimate" title to their lands in court. Unable to provide proof in a culture that did not 
record land transactions, the “Protocol” became the legal basis for white settlers to claim rights to 
and seize land from Mexicans in these territories. Our history is replete with the theft of land, of 
bodies, of culture, of skin and blood and ancestry through manipulation of the written word. 

For another example: In order for any of us to access resources, and particularly for those who are 
poor or working class, we are required to fill out endless forms that we did not design and did 
not have any say in designing. These forms do not reflect the complexity and richness of who we 
are. Yet we are constantly told that if we do not provide information on the forms, then we will 
not be able to access the resources that may or may not be available to us. Whoever and whatever 
we might actually want to share about ourselves does not matter (or even exist). The wealthier 
and whiter and more cisgender male we are, the less we have to account for ourselves on other 
peoples' terms, in writing (or at all). The wealthier and whiter and more cisgender male we are, 
the more we can count on legally written words to protect our interests, in large part because we 
have more power to determine what the legally written words will be. 

A final example: I am often asked to cite the sources that I used to write the article on which this 
website is based. The request often comes from people with less power who are trying to use the 
article to generate conversation and action towards a racial equity commitment in their 
organizations or communities. They want to know if I can provide citations or sources so the 
article will have more legitimacy to those in power. I get this request so often that I have created 
a one-pager to send in response (see website). The underlying assumption is that if a written 
piece reflects some level of wisdom, lived experience, or "other" world view that is not "properly" 
vetted, then that piece has little or no value to those who consider themselves the gatekeepers of 
legitimate knowledge. There are so many ways of knowing; writing them down according to a 
single grammatical standard with a singular set of rules about what makes that knowledge 
"legitimate" is one of many ways to erase and control information, culture, wisdom, knowing, 
insight, intuition.  

Worship of the written word has nothing to do with the ability to write well and writing well 
comes in a wide range of approaches, styles, languages. Those who engage in repeated code 
switching understand this very well. 

Worship of the written word shows up as:
• if it’s not in a memo, it doesn’t exist;
• if it's not grammatically "correct," it has no value;
• if it's not properly cited according to academic rules that many people don't know or have

access to, it's not legitimate;
• an inability or refusal to acknowledge information that is shared through stories,

embodied knowing, intuition and the wide range of ways that we individually and
collectively learn and know;

Page 38 of 64

http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/


 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 19 

• continued frustration that people and communities don't respond to written 
communication; blaming people and communities for their failure to respond; 

• those with strong documentation and writing skills are more highly valued, even in 
organizations where ability to relate to others is key to the mission; 

• collectively and generationally informed in a context where systemic racism privileges the 
writing and wisdom of people in the white group; 

• academic standards require "original" work when our knowledge and knowing almost 
always builds on the knowledge and knowing of others, of each other; 

• claiming "ownership" of (written) knowledge to meet ego needs rather than 
understanding the importance of offering what you write and know to grow and expand 
the community's knowing. 

 
Antidotes to worship of the written word include: 

• take the time to analyze how people inside and outside the organization get and share 
information; 

• figure out what actually needs to be written down and come up with alternative ways to 
document what is happening; encourage creative ways of documenting or recording or 
reflecting what you are learning and what you feel you know; 

• work to recognize the contributions and skills that every person brings to the 
organization (for example, the ability to build relationships with those who are important 
to the organization’s mission); 

• make sure anything written can be clearly understood (avoid academic language, ‘buzz’ 
words, acronyms, etc.); 

• develop your skills individually and collectively to gather information through different 
ways of knowing; 

• identify when circumstances require documentation on others' terms and bring 
transparency to how you respond (legal documents, funder applications, government 
forms, etc.); 

• dedicate time to practicing and honoring other ways of knowing and expression: oral 
storytelling, embodied learning, visual and movement art, silence, meditation, singing, 
dancing (thank you Cristina Rivera Chapman); 

• practice listening; because our culture doesn't value oral traditions or storytelling wisdom, 
we are out of listening practice or remembering how to hold a spoken word with weight 
(without having to write it down) (thank you Cristina Rivera Chapman); 

• acknowledge and honor diverse and interconnected sources of wisdom; 
• honor the value of collaborative and collective knowledge; 
• appreciate when others learn from and expand on your knowledge and writing; see 

yourself and position yourself as one person in a stream of knowing and learning. 
 
 

Individualism* and I’m the Only One 
 
These characteristics look at our cultural assumption that individualism is our cultural story - 
that we make it on our own (or should), without help, while pulling ourselves up by our own 

 
Page 39 of 64

https://earthseedlandcoop.org/
https://earthseedlandcoop.org/


 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 20 

bootstraps. Our cultural attachment to individualism leads to a toxic denial of our essential 
interdependence and the reality that we are all in this, literally, together. 
 
Individualism shows up as: 

• for white people: seeing yourselves and/or demanding to be seen as an individual and not 
as part of the white group; 

• failure to acknowledge any of the ways dominant identities - gender, class, sexuality, 
religion, able-bodiedness, age, education to name a few - are informed by belonging to a 
dominant group that shapes cultural norms and behavior; 

• for BIPOC people: individualism forces the classic double bind when BIPOC people are 
accused of not being "team players" - in other words, punishment or repercussions 
for acting as an individual if and when doing so "threatens" the team; 

• for white people: a culturally supported focus on determining whether an individual is 
racist or not while ignoring cultural, institutional, and systemic racism; the strongly felt 
need by many if not most white people to claim they are "not racist" while their 
conditioning into racism is relentless and unavoidable; 

• for white people: a belief that you are responsible for and are qualified to solve 
problems on your own; 

• for BIPOC people: being blamed and shamed for acting to solve problems without 
checking in and asking for permission from white people; 

• little experience or comfort working as part of a team, which includes both failure to 
acknowledge the genius or creativity of others on the team and a willingness to sacrifice 
democratic and collaborative process in favor of efficiency; see double bind for BIPOC 
people above; 

• desire for individual recognition and credit; failure to acknowledge how what we know is 
informed by so many others; 

• isolation and loneliness; 
• valuing competition more highly than cooperation; where collaboration is valued, little 

time or resources are devoted to developing skills in how to collaborate and cooperate; 
• accountability, if any, goes up and down, not sideways to peers or to those 

the organization is set up to serve; 
• a lack of accountability, as the organization values those who can get things done on their 

own without needing supervision or guidance, unless and until doing things on "our" own 
threatens power;  

• very connected to "one right way," "perfectionism," "qualified," and "defensiveness and 
denial." 

 
I'm the only one shows up as: 

• an aspect of individualism, the belief that if something is going to get done "right," ‘I’ 
have to do it; 

• connected to the characteristic of "one right way," the belief that "I" can determine the 
right way, am entitled and/or qualified to do so, in isolation from and without 
accountability to those most impacted by how I define the right way; 

• little or no ability to delegate work to others, micro-management; 

 
Page 40 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 21 

• based in deep fear of loss of control, which requires an illusion of control;
• putting charismatic leaders on pedestals (or positioning yourself as a charismatic leader on

a pedestal);
• romanticizing a leader (or yourself) as the center of a movement, idea, issue, campaign
• hiding or covering up the flaws of a leader (or your flaws) in fear that the organization,

movement, effort cannot survive;
• defining leadership as those most in front and most vocal (thank you Cristina Rivera

Chapman for these last four bullets).

Antidotes to individualism and I'm the only one include:
• seek to understand all the ways we are informed by our dominant identities and how our

membership in dominant identity groups informs us both overtly and covertly (while
realizing too that these identities do not have to define us); understand how membership
in a dominant group (the white group, the male group, the hetero group, the wealthy
group) extends psychic, spiritual, and emotional benefits as well as material benefits;

• seek to understand how these benefits are, in reality, toxic, because our complicity with
being positioned as both "better" and "normal" requires that we dehumanize all those
designated as "less than" and "abnormal;"

• acknowledge that all white people have internalized racist conditioning and that an anti-
racist commitment is not about being "good" or "bad," it's about figuring out what we are
going to do about our conditioning;

• do our personal work while also bringing focus to cultural, institutional, and systemic
manifestations of white supremacy and racism;

• name teamwork and collaboration as an important personal and group value;
acknowledge that teamwork and collaboration take more time, particularly at the front
end and yield a better result with higher buy-in and higher ability to take shared risks;

• make sure the group or organization is working towards shared goals that have been
collaboratively developed and named;

• reward people for collaborating;
• evaluate the ability to work in a team as well as the ability to get things done;
• honor process as much as product (honor how you do things as much as what you do or

produce);
• make sure that credit is given to all who participate in an effort, not just the leaders or

most public person; make sure that when you are given credit, you distribute it to all
those who helped you with whatever was accomplished;

• create collective accountability (rather than individual accountability);
• create a culture where people feel they can bring problems to the group; use meetings as a

place to solve problems, not just a place to report activities;
• hold ourselves accountable to the principle of collective thinking and action;
• develop the ability to collaborate and delegate to others;
• in workspaces or movement efforts, evaluate performance based on an ability to work as

part of a team to accomplish shared goals;
• hold ourselves and each other accountable to a shared definition of leadership that

assumes a collaborative and collective approach;

Page 41 of 64

https://earthseedlandcoop.org/


 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 22 

• hold ourselves and leaders accountable for mistakes without assuming that we need to be 
perfect to lead; develop collaborative and collective strategies for how to respond to 
mistakes that encourage learning from the mistakes, appropriate boundary setting, and 
restorative approaches; 

• realize that leadership is dynamic and does not rest in one individual; we are called upon 
to lead at different times in different circumstances and called upon to follow or take a 
back seat when we are learning or making room for new leadership to emerge. 

 
 

Defensiveness and Denial 
 
Defensiveness and denial reflect our cultural dis-ease with truth telling, particularly when we are 
speaking truth to power. White supremacy culture encourages a habit of denying and defending 
any speaking to or about it. White supremacy culture encourages a habit of silence about things 
that matter and, as the collective of artists fighting the AIDS epidemic so wisely and succinctly 
said, silence = death. 
 
Defensiveness shows up as: 

• The organizational structure is set up and much energy spent trying to prevent abuse and 
protect power rather than to facilitate the capacities of each person or to clarify who has 
power and how they are expected to use it. 

• Because of either/or and binary thinking, those in power view and/or experience 
criticism as threatening and inappropriate (or rude). 

• People respond to new or challenging ideas with objections or criticism, making it very 
difficult to raise these ideas. 

• People in the organization, particularly those with power, spend a lot of energy trying to 
make sure that their feelings aren’t getting hurt, forcing others to work around their 
defensiveness rather than addressing them head-on. At its worst, they have convinced 
others to do this work for them. 

• White people spend energy defending against charges of racism instead of examining 
how racism might actually be happening. 

• White people claim that participation in anti-racist activity means they cannot be racist 
or be engaged in racism; closely linked to individualism. 

• White people targeted by other oppressions express resentment because they experience 
the naming of racism as erasing their experience; closely linked to either/or/binary 
thinking. 

• An oppressive culture where people are afraid to speak their truth. 
 
Antidotes or suggestions for how to show up in more connecting and healing ways include: 

• Understand that structure cannot in and of itself facilitate or prevent abuse. 
• Understand the link between defensiveness and fear (of losing power, losing face, losing 

comfort, losing privilege). 
• Work on your own defensiveness; ask yourself what you are defending against and why 
• Develop a culture of naming defensiveness as a problem when it is one. 

 
Page 42 of 64

https://www.villagevoice.com/2017/06/20/how-six-nyc-activists-changed-history-with-silence-death/
http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/eitheror--the-binary.html
http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/eitheror--the-binary.html
http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/individualism.html


 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 23 

• Set up brainstorming and other sessions designed to consider ideas ahead of time by 
naming defensiveness as a behavior or attitude the group wants to name and avoid. 

• Give people credit for being able to handle more than you think; in other words, avoid 
deciding what someone can or cannot hear, particularly if you don't have evidence.  

• When someone responds defensively, ask them to talk through what they are defending 
(or defending against); you might find some rich information that way. 

• Discuss the ways in which defensiveness or resistance to new ideas gets in the way of the 
mission. Use your own experience with your own defensiveness and resistance as an 
example. Brainstorm options for what the group can and will do when defensiveness and 
resistance show up. 

• Consider the power differences at play; when someone with a lot of power is defensive 
and resistant, the options are very different than when someone with less or little power is 
defensive and resistant. Be clear about the power dynamics in the situation and respond 
thoughtfully. The person with power has greater responsibility to name and move 
through their own defensiveness and resistance, although the collective is best served 
when everyone has those skills. 

• Know that resentment is a form of defensiveness and signals that the person feeling the 
resentment feels unseen and unheard. Or afraid of losing power. See the bullet point 
above. 

 
Denial shows up as: 

• just what it sounds like – denying what another person is saying about the ways in which 
white supremacy and/or racism are showing up in an interaction or space. 

• A pattern that often has a white person with different levels of power denying what a 
Black, Indigenous or Person of Color or a whole community is saying about their 
experience of racism. 

• Claiming the right to define what is and what is not racism. 
• Insisting that white supremacy and racism require intent. Attempting to separate intent 

from impact in order to claim that if racism is not intended, then it is not happening. 
• Refusing to consider or acknowledge the historical legacy of white supremacy and racism 

and the structural nature of racial disparities. Rewriting, reframing, or omitting histories 
to erase or downplay racism. 

• The refusal or inability to feel the emotional cost of racism. At worst suggesting that acts 
of violence and rage targeting BIPOC communities and people are deserved and/or 
necessary and at best ignoring or downplaying acts of violence and rage directed at 
BIPOC. 

• Insisting that individually or collectively, a person or group is free from racialized 
conditioning, leading to statements like “I don’t see color,” and “we’re all the same.” 

• Refusing to acknowledge the benefits of belonging to the white group while generalizing 
about BIPOC people and communities. Connected to individualism. 

• Seeing and/or understanding the actions of white people as individual while generalizing 
to whole BIPOC groups. Refusing, for example, to acknowledge the accelerating pattern 
of white boys and men committing acts of gun violence while attributing “danger” to 

 
Page 43 of 64

http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/individualism.html


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 24 

whole Communities of Color to excuse police or other violence directed at Black and 
Brown people. 

• Erasing intersectionality - generalizing about a whole group without recognizing the
ways in which class, gender, sexuality, religion, age, dis/ability, and other identities
inform our individual and collective experiences.

Antidotes include:
• Assume that any naming of racism is on target. Instead of asking is it or isn’t it racism,

ask how is it racism?
• Understand deep in our bones that naming racism is the first step toward repair. Learn to

acknowledge any fear that naming brings up – the feeling is not wrong or right – so that
you can move through the feeling and address what has been raised.

• For white people: Avoid taking accusations of racism or collusion in racism personally.
Avoid defending yourself. Learn to say "tell me more." Understand your racism (or your
collusion in racism) as conditioning, not as who you essentially are. Understand that
awareness of your conditioning is necessary if you are going to change and grow.

• Call yourself and others in, not out. We will not grow the movement through shame and
blame, even though shame and blame are necessary elements of our own individual and
personal development. We will grow the movement by holding each other accountable
from a position of care, kindness, and love. Sometimes we will have to employ tough love
and always the goal is to avoid throwing ourselves or anyone else away. Thanks to our
beloved Cynthia Brown for this instruction.

• Know our history. Learn our history. Understand how racist patterns repeat over and over
again. Take the time to learn where you live and work and love and the Indigenous
history of the peoples who lived and worked and loved there before you (or live there
now). Take the time to learn your own indigenity (thank you Justin
Robinson and Vivette Jeffries-Logan). Take the time to know both the history of white
supremacy patterns and the stories of resistance and resilience. Plant yourself in the river
of resistance and resilience.

• Learn about the history of the recurring structural power, privilege, and benefits bestowed
on the white group at the expense of BIPOC people and communities. Understand the
price paid.

• Learn to admit when you are wrong. Understand that vulnerability can be a strength,
particularly if you are sitting in a position of power and privilege. Understand that not
everyone can afford to be vulnerable in the same way.

• Develop self-awareness and emotional intelligence so you can take responsibility for
yourself and your emotions in collective and collaborative work. This is an essential part
of self-care and the link between taking care of ourselves and our ability to show up in
community with integrity.

• Take the time to understand yourself as both an individual and part of a racialized group.
Take the time to understand that you are deeply informed by your racial group (or groups
if you are mixed roots). Understand that you are not defined by your racial group(s).
Learn to discern and respect the difference for yourself and for others.

Page 44 of 64

https://fromcynthiawithlove.weebly.com/
https://earthseedlandcoop.org/
https://earthseedlandcoop.org/
https://www.biwa-emergentequity.com/


 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 25 

• Acknowledge the power of intersectionality. Being a white cisgender owning class male is 
a different experience than being a white gender-non-conforming working class person. 
While the construct of whiteness and racial grouping means that we are being invited 
into the same construct, the invitation looks different and will be a different lived 
experience. Acknowledge and respect the overlaps and the differences. 

 
 

Right to Comfort, Fear of Open Conflict, and Power Hoarding 
 
These characteristics focus on our cultural assumption that I or we (or the ones in formal and 
informal power) have a right to comfort, which means we cannot tolerate conflict, particularly 
open conflict. This assumption supports the tendency to blame the person or group causing 
discomfort or conflict rather than addressing the issues being named. 
 
Right to comfort shows up as: 

• the belief that those with power have a right to emotional and psychological comfort 
(another aspect of valuing ‘logic’ over emotion); 

• scapegoating those who cause discomfort, for example, targeting and isolating those who 
name racism rather than addressing the actual racism that is being named; 

• demanding, requiring, expecting apologies or other forms of "I didn't mean it" when 
faced with accusations of colluding with racism; 

• feeling entitled to name what is and isn't racism; 
• white people (or those with dominant identities) equating individual acts of unfairness 

with systemic racism (or other forms of oppression).  
 
Antidotes or suggestions for how to show up in more connecting and healing ways: 

• understand that discomfort is at the root of all growth and learning; 
• welcome discomfort and learn to sit with discomfort before responding or acting; 
• deepen your political analysis of racism and oppression so you have a strong 

understanding of how your personal experience and feelings fit into a larger picture; 
• avoid taking take everything personally; 
• welcome honest and hard feedback as the gift it is, knowing that people could so easily 

choose to stay silent and talk about you behind your back rather than gift you with their 
truth about how your attitudes and/or behavior are causing a problem;  

• when you have a different point of view, seek to understand what you're being told and 
assume there is a good reason for what is being said; seek to find and understand that 
good reason (without labeling the other person); 

• remember that feedback and criticism may be skillful or unskillful and either way, it will 
not kill you; 

• remember that critical feedback can help you see your conditioning as you learn to 
separate your conditioning from who you actually are; you need to know your 
conditioning if you are going to be free; while your conditioning is hazardous, you are 
not. 

 

 
Page 45 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 26 

Fear of (open) conflict shows up as:
• people in power are scared of expressed conflict and try to ignore it or run from it;
• when someone raises an issue that causes discomfort, the response is to blame the person

for raising the issue rather than to look at the issue which is actually causing the problem;
• emphasis or insistence on being polite; setting the rules for how ideas or information or

differences of opinion need to be shared in order to be heard (in other words, requiring
that people "calm down" if they are angry when anger often contains deep wisdom about
where the underlying hurt and harm lies);

• equating the raising of difficult issues with being impolite, rude, or out of line; punishing
people either overtly or subtly for speaking out about their truth and/or experience;

• labeling emotion as "irrational" or anti-intellectual or inferior, which means failing to
recognize the importance of emotional intelligence;

• pretending or insisting that our point of view is grounded in the "rational" or the
intellectual when we are in fact masking our emotions with what appear to be rational or
intellectual arguments.

Antidotes or suggestions for how to show up in more connecting and healing ways:
• role play or discuss or plan for ways to handle conflict before conflict happens;
• distinguish between being polite and raising hard issues;
• don’t require those who raise hard issues to raise them in ‘acceptable’ ways, especially if

you are using the ways in which issues are raised as an excuse not to address them;
• develop your emotional intelligence so you can tell when you are hiding your emotions

with the excuse that you are being "rational;"
• be transparent about power, so that everyone understands who makes the final decision

and/or how the final decision is made before you dive into the conflict;
• invite a third or "neutral" party to support exploration of the conflict;
• assume that everyone has a very good reason for their position and seek to lift those up to

the light of day;
• once a conflict is resolved, take the opportunity to revisit it and see how it might have

been handled differently.

Power hoarding shows up as:
• little, if any, value around sharing power;
• power seen as limited, only so much to go around;
• those with power feel threatened when anyone suggests changes in how things should be

done in the organization, often feeling suggestions for change are a reflection on their
leadership;

• those with power don’t see themselves as hoarding power or as feeling threatened;
• those with power assume they have the best interests of the organization at

heart and assume those wanting change are ill-informed (stupid), emotional,
inexperienced; blaming the messenger rather than focusing on the message;

• clinging and other emotional constriction that clouds our field of vision and catapults us
back into our small self with its insatiable sense of anxiety and threat.

Page 46 of 64



 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 27 

Antidotes to power hoarding include: 
• include power sharing as an explicit organizational or community value; 
• discuss and define what good leadership looks like and include how a good leader 

develops the power and skills of others; 
• if you are a leader and/or hold power, understand that change is inevitable and challenges 

to your leadership are often healthy and productive; adopt the "tell me more" approach to 
challenges; 

• if you are a leader and/or hold power, avoid taking challenges personally and return to the 
principle of collective thinking and action; ask for help with your leadership, particularly 
when feeling highly defensive; 

• if you are a leader and/or hold power, realize your ability and responsibility to support 
others to hold power well and responsibly, to support others to be successful and to shine, 
to mentor and support others; realize your ability to support and help others grow reflects 
well on you (as opposed to attitudes and behaviors that stem from fear, desire to control 
and/or micro-manage); 

• allow yourself to feel the joy in helping others grow, thrive, succeed, and even exceed 
(you); 

• make sure the organization is focused on the vision, mission, and values rather than 
staying "in business" for the sake of staying in business; 

• lean in to the racial equity principle of "know yourself" and develop strategies for making 
friends with your ego so that you are leading and/or acting from a place of integrity rather 
than fear or anxiety about your importance. 

 
 

Urgency 
 
A constant sense of urgency reflects our cultural habit of applying a sense of urgency to our 
every-day lives in ways that perpetuate power imbalance while disconnecting us from our need to 
breathe and pause and reflect. The irony is that this imposed sense of urgency serves to erase the 
actual urgency of tackling racial and social injustice. 
 
A constant sense of urgency: 

• makes it difficult to take time to be inclusive, encourage democratic and/or thoughtful 
decision-making, to think and act long-term, and/or to consider consequences of 
whatever action we take; 

• frequently results in sacrificing potential allies for quick or highly visible results, for 
example sacrificing interests of BIPOC people and communities in order to win victories 
for white people (seen as default or norm community); 

• reinforces existing power hierarchies that use the sense of urgency to control decision-
making in the name of expediency; 

• is reinforced by funding proposals which promise too much work for too little money 
and by funders who expect too much for too little; 

• privileges those who process information quickly (or think they do); 

 
Page 47 of 64

http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/racial-equity-principles.html


 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 28 

• sacrifices and erases the potential of other modes of knowing and wisdom that require 
more time (embodied, intuitive, spiritual); 

• encourages shame, guilt, and self-righteousness to manipulate decision-making; 
• reinforces the idea that we are ruled by time, deadlines, and needing to do things in a 

"timely" way often based on arbitrary schedules that have little to do with the actual 
realities of how long things take, particularly when those "things" are relationships with 
others;  

• connected to objectivity in the sense that we think that our sense of time and/or meeting 
deadlines is objective because we see or frame time as objective; 

• reproduces either/or thinking because of the stated need to reach decisions quickly; 
• makes it harder for us to distinguish what is really urgent from what feels urgent; after a 

while everything takes on the same sense of urgency, leading to mental, physical, 
intellectual, and spiritual burnout and exhaustion; 

• involves unrealistic expectations about how much can get done in any period of time; 
linked to perfectionism in the urgency that perfectionism creates as we try to make sure 
something is done perfectly according to our standards. 

 
This characteristic of white supremacy is challenging because we understand that racial justice 
and equity is urgent. White supremacy and racism threaten, target, and violate BIPOC people 
and communities every day. White supremacy and racism invite and condition us into toxic 
thinking and behavior every day. We are called on, with this characteristic, to hold the volatile 
and tender contradiction of an underlying urgency about our immediate need for justice which is 
with us always with the day to day sense of urgency that too often defines our organizational and 
community cultures, leading to the consequences listed above. White supremacy culture is not 
urgent about racial justice; white supremacy culture is urgent in the name of short-term power 
and profit. And white supremacy culture likes to engender a culture of urgency in those of us 
who are working to dismantle it because it knows that living with a constant sense that 
everything is urgent is a recipe for the abuse of power and burnout.  
 
Antidotes to a sense of urgency include: 

• realistic workplans based on the lived experience of the people and organization involved; 
• leadership who understands that everything takes longer than anyone expects; 
• a commitment to equity, including a commitment to discuss and plan for what it means 

to embed equity practices into the workplan; 
• a commitment to learn from past experience how long things take; 
• collaborative development of realistic funding proposals with realistic time frames; 
• clarity ahead of time about how you will make good decisions in an atmosphere of 

urgency (including clarity about what constitutes a "good" decision); 
• an understanding that rushing decisions takes more time in the long run because 

inevitably people who didn’t get a chance to voice their thoughts and feelings will at best 
resent and at worst undermine a decision where they were left unheard; 

• developing a personal and collective practice of noticing when urgency arises and taking a 
pause to deliberate with thoughtfulness and intention about the nature of the urgency and 
the range of options available to you. 

 
Page 48 of 64



White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 29 

Racial Equity Principles 

In addition to the antidotes listed under each of the characteristics, you will find a list of 10 racial 
equity principles that might prove useful in thinking about how to build the culture and 
institutions and people we want and deserve to be. The Dismantling Racism Works collaborative 
developed these 10 racial equity principles after a decade of experience working with and for 
community based leaders and organizations living into their racial justice commitment. Over our 
years of working together, members of the collaborative added to the principles based on our 
evolving understanding of what we need in order to support racial justice work. We have found 
these principles to ground us powerfully in the wisdom they offer as we navigate the challenges, 
constraints, and violations of white supremacy culture. As we build the world we want and 
deserve. As we become free.  

You can find these principles on the www.whitesupremacyculture.info website. 

Please Do Not Weaponize This Tool 

 I want to offer a cautionary plea here about weaponizing this list. 

The website, the article, the information offered here is a tool, an analytical tool designed to help 
us better understand white supremacy culture. The intention is to help us understand the water 
in which we are all swimming so that we can collaboratively work together to build and sustain 
cultures that help us thrive as communities and individuals. Cultures that are not based on abuse 
of power and accumulation of profit. Cultures that are based on interdependence, justice, and 
respect for each other and the earth and wind and sun and stars. Cultures that embody the belief 
that we all do better when we all do better. 

I remember how, in my early years of working with Kenneth Jones to offer dismantling racism 
training, people would take the analysis and framework we offered and use it to beat each other 
up - "My analysis is better than your analysis," "I am/we are more righteous than you." Similarly, 
some people report that this list gets used as a weapon to accuse, shame, and blame in ways that 
perpetuate disconnection. 

I believe we are all deeply harmed by white supremacy culture. I am asking us to sit with the 
devastating impacts of white supremacy culture on all of us even though that impact is very 
different based on our race, our class, our gender, our sexuality, our lived experiences. One friend 
reports crying after reading the list as he came to grips with the devastating impacts of white 
supremacy culture on his white working class family of origin as he was creating a middle class 
family himself.  

Another, a skilled facilitator, reports that "I could not possibly tally the number of hours I have 
spent over the last three years dislodging people from the reductive stance they construct based 

Page 49 of 64

http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/racial-equity-principles.html
http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/racial-equity-principles.html
www.whitesupremacyculture.info
www.whitesupremacyculture.info


 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 30 

on the tool. In its current [1999] form, just to name one area, it tilts people towards a behavioral 
and ahistorical frame. And because it couches things in a way that can be read as absolutist, it 
can generate almost ridiculous orthodoxies of exclusion. I worked in one situation where the 
communications function had come to a grinding halt because a segment of the staff had decided 
that editing was white supremacist and, while yes, there are elitist and racist frames around 
proper language, the organization was locked in an either/or frame that was incredibly unhealthy 
and unproductive." 
 
An activist talks about how the list has been used to scold white people, to tell white people we 
are inherently problematic and that our work, those of us who are white, is to never trust 
ourselves. A BIPOC person shares that the list is traumatizing and triggering.   
 
Working with each other across lines of difference is really hard. We cause harm, we operate out 
of our conditioning, we are rightfully enraged, deeply hurt, exhausted. I am not suggesting that 
living a racial equity commitment is clean or easy. Or that this list is in any way a final word on 
how white supremacy culture operates. 
 
One of the challenges we face as we work together is that building justice is complex and 
nuanced while white supremacy culture likes to pretend we can reduce everything to a simple 
either/or. So we are called to navigate the complexity of our conditioning without losing sight of 
the inherent humanity in each of us.  
 
The movement is currently engaged in important conversations about calling in and calling out. I 
lean on the words of the late and fabulous and fierce and funny Cynthia Brown, a social justice 
warrior and beloved friend, who told us with her last breaths that we should never throw anyone 
away. This does not mean we can't hold each other accountable (another word for supporting 
each other to be our best selves), set boundaries when people have not learned yet to take 
responsibility for themselves, apologize and take responsibility ourselves when we cause harm, 
and continue to grow and learn how to be with each other even when we are getting on each 
other's last nerve.  
 
I will say that white supremacy wants us to attack each other as the problem. As we fight with 
and among each other, we fail to identify the actual problem. An instruction we might hold to is 
to attack the problem, not the people, not each other (thank you Calvin Allen). Of course, 
sometimes our behavior is a problem, our conditioning is a problem, and then we can, when we 
are able, help each other through. And if we cannot, we look to others who have the capacity to 
help or be in relationship as they look to us when they are out of capacity and we are able to 
show up. 
 
I'm not pretending to have easy answers. My point is simply that I hope we can use this list to 
help us name the ways in which our conditioning might be getting in our own and each other's 
way rather than as an instrument of shame, blame, or accusation of not being good enough. The 
dominant culture already gives us plenty of messaging about how deficient and wrong we are;  
  

 
Page 50 of 64

https://fromcynthiawithlove.weebly.com/


 White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 31 

perhaps we can learn to show up to each other with more compassion (and give ourselves and 
each other a break when we can't). 
 
Both/and, my lovelies, both/and. 

 
 

End Note from original article 
 
One of the purposes of listing characteristics of white supremacy culture is to point out how 
organizations that unconsciously use these characteristics as their norms and standards make it 
difficult, if not impossible, to open the door to other cultural norms and standards. As a result, 
many of our organizations, while saying we want to be anti-racist and multicultural, really only 
allow “others” to belong if they adapt or conform to already existing cultural norms. Being able to 
identify and name the cultural norms and standards you want is a step towards racial equity. 
 

 
Sources 

This section includes the source notes from the original article. 
 
I wrote the White Supremacy Characteristics article in 1999 (see introductory paragraphs above). 
 
On the night I wrote the first draft, I arrived back to my apartment in a frustrated lather about a 
meeting I had just attended, a meeting where many of the characteristics named in the article 
kept showing up. I sat at my computer in a quiet rage. The words poured out. This is the one 
and only time I can claim to understand the idea of something “writing itself.” I operated mostly 
as a vessel and the words came through me rather than from me. 
  
I then began to share what I had written with some of my mentors and colleagues; their names 
are credited at the beginning of the article.  
  
This article was not the result of research. This article came through me as the result of my years 
of work as an anti-racism teacher and trainer, my collaboration with brilliant and wise colleagues, 
the serendipity of being in the right place at the right time, and whatever forces moved me to put 
the words on the page. If you need a highly researched article to believe what you are reading, I 
will simply suggest there are now literally hundreds if not thousands of researched sources that 
support the truth of the toxicity of white supremacy culture. I will also say that the article has 
proven its value in its wide and prevalent use (nothing to do with me, everything to do with our 
collective desire to understand this culture we are all trying to navigate and transgress).  
 
I will also add that many, many people have taken the article, adapted it, revised it, added to it, 
made a zine out of it, applied it specifically to their field or community, and made it their own. I 
am absolutely thrilled about this and some of those adaptations, revisions, and creative 
manifestations of the original work are offered on the AND ... page of the website. 
 

 
Page 51 of 64

http://www.whitesupremacyculture.info/


White Supremacy Culture: Still Here | www.whitesupremacyculture.info | Page 32 

There are many ways to know. Research is not the only source of wisdom. I am not claiming to 
be wise so much as I am claiming that we benefit when we open ourselves to the idea that our 
wisdom can come from many sources and in many ways. May you find the article of benefit. 

Sources cited in the original article: 

The original piece on white supremacy culture written in 1999 built on the work of many people, 
including (but not limited to) Andrea Ayvazian, Bree Carlson, Beverly Daniel Tatum, Eli 
Dueker, Nancy Emond, Kenneth Jones, Jonn Lunsford, Sharon Martinas, Joan Olsson, David 
Rogers, James Williams, Sally Yee, as well as the work of Grassroots Leadership, Equity 
Institute Inc, the People’s Institute for Survival and Beyond, the Challenging White Supremacy 
workshop, the Lillie Allen Institute, the Western States Center, and the contributions of 
hundreds of participants in the DR process. Their influence and wisdom lives on in this updated 
version. 

* Sections marked with an * are based on the work of Daniel Buford, a lead trainer with the
People’s Institute for Survival and Beyond who has done extensive research on white supremacy
culture.

Notes from People’s Institute for Survival and Beyond Workshop, Oakland, CA, spring 1999. Notes 
from Challenging White Supremacy Workshop, San Francisco, CA, spring 1999. Beverly Daniel 
Tatum, Why Are All the Black Kids Sitting Together in the Cafeteria? NY: HarperCollins, 
1997. Derrick Jensen, A Language Older Than Words. NY: Context Books, 2000. Paul Kivel, 
Uprooting Racism. PA: New Society Publishers, 1996. Anne Wilson Schaef, Living in Process. 
NY: Ballantine, 1998. For complete bibliography, see complete notebook for dRwork’s 
Dismantling Racism process.  

Page 52 of 64

https://resourcegeneration.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/2016-dRworks-workbook.pdf


 

 Partnership with SRJC Integrated Education and Training Program, with letters of support from 9 
local construction companies 

 Funding:  EDD Grant + WIOA formula funds + Regional Plan Implementation 3.0 funding 

 Staffing:  .5 FTE Coordinator funded through ELL Grant, all other staff time with WIOA formula funds 

 Timeframe:  Fall semester 2021 through Fall semester 2022 (3 semesters) 

 Target:  12 students co-enrolled in IET class and WIOA each semester – considered a Training Cohort 

 Process Objectives:  Job Link staff engaged in classroom activities throughout each semester; 
Business partners participate with students in presentations, mock interviews.  RPI 3.0 funding used 
to augment services and supplies for students.  Business Services provides Job Development services 
as needed. 

 Outcome Goals:  90% successfully complete class, 75% continue in classes and/or move into job in 
construction industry, any occupation. 

Update 
ELL Class not offered in Fall 2022. 
Currently underway to closeout grant.   

Number co-enrolled to date 5 

Several WIOA participants wanted to join the 
class but failed to demonstrate a sufficient 
English level on the CASAS test and did not 
qualify for the program. 

Grant amount $182,900 
Percent of grant funding used to date 42% • Staff time 

• Supportive Services 
Outreach Activities • Facebook ads, current ESL classes, flyer distribution in the 

community, navigators in satellite sites, Graton Day Labor, 
EDD Field workers taking marketing material into the field 

Business Engagement • Currently planning class presentations by potential employers 
• Reaching out to businesses run by bilingual staff to bring into 

the class.  
Integrated Curricula • Employer partners presenting in class – desirable skills, 

English level needed for the job, tools required, etc. 
 

Progress Report to Sonoma WIB on initiatives serving WIOA priority populations 

Initiative: English Language Learner / Construction Cohort 

Date:  November WIB meeting, Data through October 2022 

 
Page 53 of 64



 Partnership with Sonoma County Probation and Sherriff’s Departments, CBOs and Human
Services Departments

 Funding:  P2E grant funds, AB 109 grant funds, WIOA formula funds

 Staffing:  E&T Program Coordinator supported with grant funds; All ETC staff time absorbed by
P2E and WIOA formula funds

 Timeframe:  P2E funds expire March 2022, AB 109 end June 30, 2022

 Target:  60 job seekers with justice system involvement enrolled/served in Adult/DW/other

 Process Objectives: Referral process developed and institutionalized. Participants enrolled in
WIOA, receiving individualized services.  Project is steered by collaborative involving Day
Reporting Center staff, Sergeant at MADF, Job Link, CBOs, employers, and participant
representative. Job Link Business Services provides Job Development services as needed.

 Output/Outcome Goals:  100 individuals referred to Job Link.  60% successfully enrolled in WIOA
services.  60% employed at program exit.

Update – October 2021 through October 2022 

Number enrolled to date 48 
Includes any participant with justice 
involvement, not just P2E grant 
participants.   

Training/supportive services funding 
utilized 

Training: $9,604 

OJT: $11,407 

Supportive Services: $14,996 

Outreach Activities • Outreach via our partner agencies that are referring justice-
involved individuals through our pilot program for
individuals who are unsheltered

• Outreach conducted during monthly virtual PACT meetings
(Parole and Community Team) in October-February to
inform parolees about Job Link services

• Ongoing communication with probation officers at DRC as
well as with local jail staff to encourage referrals

Business Engagement • Identifying and connecting with employers who are hiring
and are second chance employers to help connect job
seekers with these employers through Job Link’s business
services team, as well as through the partnership with the
business services program manager at the Economic
Development Board.

Progress Report to Sonoma WIB on initiatives serving WIOA priority populations 

Initiative: Justice Involved Youth & Adults 

Date:  November WIB meeting, Data through October 2022

Page 54 of 64



Total individuals referred 41 Referrals received from Day Reporting 
Center, Probation Officers, CBOs, Health 
Services, walk-ins, etc.  

Total individuals employed at exit for 
time period June 2022 – October 2022 

6 Participants obtained or retained 
employment in various industries and 
occupations. 

Participants may continue to receive 
services and support, not necessarily exited 
yet 

Requests of WIB • Work experience placements
• Enrichment activities (i.e. mock interviews)

Page 55 of 64



 
 Partnership with Family, Youth & Children’s Services, CBOs, employers 

 Funding: Realignment funding (“STAY”), WIOA formula funds 

 Staffing: All staff time absorbed by TANF funding  

 Timeframe: TANF funding is continuous, STAY funding is also continuous depending on 
utilization and outcomes. 

 Target: 30 Foster Youth enrolled/served in WIOA Title 1 or other employment services program 
through Job Link. 

 Process Objectives: Referral process developed and institutionalized. Participants enrolled in 
WIOA or other employment services program through Job Link, receiving individualized services.  
Project is steered by collaborative involving Job Link, CBOs, employers, and participant 
representative. Business Services provides Job Development services as needed. Additional 
funding developed to cover disallowed expenses. Other grants, e.g. P2E are leveraged on a 
routine basis. 

 Output/Outcome Goals:  15 foster youth referred to Job Link by CBOs.  50% successfully enrolled 
in WIOA Title 1.  68% employed at program exit. 13% Enrolled in education and/or training 

Update – (through October 2022) 
Target for enrollment  
July 2022 through June 2023 30 

Number enrolled to date 25 
Training/supportive services funding utilized 
Non-discretionary funding utilized  
Other grant funding leveraged 

• $7,680 temporary work experience training/$360 supportive 
services funding 

• $34,921.79 non-discretionary funding 
Outreach Activities • SAY staff are co-located in many Santa Rosa high schools, 

Juvenile Probation Camp, VOICES, Teen Services Sonoma, and 
the Sonoma Valley Boys & Girls Club. Their Street Outreach 
Team connects homeless young people to services. 

• HSD staff also in regular communication with FYC Division 
regarding opportunities for foster youth. 

• CCNB/HSD increasing outreach to CBO’s and in social media 
to increase programs enrollment  

Business Engagement • Job Link Business Services & Youth Programs staff have 
connected with numerous (10+) businesses/agencies open to 
hiring young people, including foster youth, on a permanent 
or temporary basis 

• First youth/foster youth intern hired at Job Link. Recruitment 
underway for a potential second intern 

• Increase in STAY enrollments in SCYEC 
Supportive Services provided • Transportation assistance ($240) 

• Post-Secondary Educational Materials ($100) 
• Job interview clothing voucher ($20) 

Progress Report to Sonoma WIB on initiatives serving WIOA priority populations 

Initiative: Foster Youth 

Date: November WIB meeting, Data through October 31, 2022 

 
Page 56 of 64



Total individuals employed at exit N/A 
Other exits N/A 
Requests of WIB • Provide work experience opportunities for foster youth

• Participate in youth enrichment events (e.g., mock interviews)
• Promote youth programs in the community

Page 57 of 64



 Partnership with local community providers serving unhoused individuals

 Funding:  WIOA formula funds, P2E grant, outside donations

 Staffing:  All staff time absorbed by WIOA formula funds

 Timeframe:  Ongoing

 Target:  40 unhoused job seekers referred by CBO partners enrolled in WIOA Title 1

 Process Objectives: Referral process developed and institutionalized. Participants enrolled in
WIOA, receiving individualized services.  Project is steered by collaborative involving Job Link,
CBOs, employers, and participant representative. Business Services provides Job Development
services as needed.  Additional funding developed to cover disallowed expenses. Other grants,
e.g. P2E are leveraged on a routine basis.

 Output/Outcome Goals:  40 individuals referred to Job Link by CBOs.  50% successfully enrolled
in WIOA Title 1.  30% employed at program exit.

Update – through October 2022 
Target for enrollment 40 

Number enrolled to date 34 

• New strategies have led to a significant
improvement in our ability to establish
and maintain communication with
customers.

Mock Interview Days • 3 Mock interview days held
• 27 clients have practiced interviewing, some multiple times
• 11 volunteers from a variety of industries are conducting the

mock interviews

Outreach Activities • Homeless Pilot Workgroup formal referral process
• We have conducted multiple site visits to 5 homeless service

providers, giving presentations and informally interacting with
staff and clients.

• Op-Ed article in the Press Democrat
• Participant survey conducted to gather client voice and improve

services

Business Engagement • Presentations to the WIB and to Rotary Club.
• Job Link Business Services has connected with numerous

businesses/agencies open to hiring people struggling to find
permanent shelter.

• Staff are working with EDB Business Representative and Sonoma
SBDC re: employment and self-employment options.

Progress Report to Sonoma WIB on initiatives serving WIOA priority populations 

Initiative: Unhoused Pilot 

Date:  November WIB meeting, Data through October 2022

Page 58 of 64

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pressdemocrat.com%2Farticle%2Fopinion%2Fclose-to-home-finding-work-hope-and-a-new-home%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cjpaul%40schsd.org%7C3a48eb9608c94ce909ea08dab69ec6f9%7C0f62f0def3454c8ba4e6ad85f2e9e92c%7C0%7C0%7C638023090313662536%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kWqjkiNo1AISrZf8pRntp9PFxLttnOS3fBHKjVKxIXc%3D&reserved=0


• Monthly mock interviews conducted with volunteers from a
variety of businesses

• Job/Resource Fair planning underway

Supportive Services provided • Gas $, work clothing and shoes, car repairs, live scan fees
Total individuals referred 82 
Requests of WIB • Provide work experience opportunities

• Participate in enrichment activities (i.e. mock interviews)
• Attend workgroup meetings (reach out to Antonio Vigil if

interested)
• Participate in planning and attending the upcoming Job/Resource

Fair

Page 59 of 64



Sonoma County Early Childhood Education (SCECE) Apprenticeship Updates: 

 Draft apprenticeship standards for Associate Teacher have been written and submitted to
the state for review

 This is a mixture of both Related Supplemental Instruction (RSI) and On-the-Job Training
(OJT)

 Aiming for early 2023 approval

 Santa Rosa Junior College submitted and was awarded California Apprenticeship Initiative
(CAI) grant in the amount of $486,912

 SRJC is the Lead Educational Agency and SRJC Children’s Center is the sponsor

Sonoma WIB Initiatives Serving WIOA Priority Populations 

Initiative: Expand Earn & Learn Opportunities—ECE Apprenticeship 

Date:  November 9th General WIB Meeting

Page 60 of 64



1/4

EILEEN MORRIS October 20, 2022

Close to Home: Finding work, hope and a new home
pressdemocrat.com/article/opinion/close-to-home-finding-work-hope-and-a-new-home/

EILEEN MORRIS

EILEEN MORRIS IS ENRICHMENT SERVICES MANAGER AT COTS.

October 20, 2022

The views and opinions expressed in this commentary are those of the author and don’t
necessarily reflect The Press Democrat editorial board’s perspective. The opinion and news
sections operate separately and independently of one another.

I don’t recommend doing this, but if you choose to read the online comments on any article
about homelessness, you’ll find a lot of “expert opinions.” One comment is always prominent:
“Get a Job!”

But that’s not always easy to do if you have no home. Because “no home” can mean no car,
no phone, no experience. No clothes, no connections, no health care, no peace of mind and
no child care.

No hope.

Page 61 of 64



2/4

Eileen Morris

That’s why we at COTS and other area homeless service agencies are grateful to Sonoma 
County Job Link for its pilot program to help people without homes find and keep 
employment.

The program links our participants with a counselor dedicated to helping them increase their 
confidence, outline their goals, prepare themselves for a job search and thrive at work.

Page 62 of 64



3/4

Samantha came to the program after earning an associate degree in medical billing while
living on the streets — an amazing accomplishment. But for all her determination, she had
no experience in the field outside of her stint as a candy striper in high school.

That nearly three-decade gap in her résumé made her nervous, and Sonoma County Job
Link counselor Pedro Guevara helped her work through it. Together, they refined her résumé,
and he set up four separate mock interviews for her to hone her technique.

He also reached out to employers and let them know that she would have Job Link’s support
and mentorship for the first year of her employment. He offered on-the-job training funding, a
program through which Job Link would pay 50% of Samantha’s wages for the first six
months. The training funds come from the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act signed
by President Barack Obama in 2014.

When the Petaluma Health Center offered Samantha an interview, she says, “I got cold feet.
Pedro talked me into it.” She’s now permanently housed, and she’s been employed in an
administrative position at the health center for a year. “Job Link helped me get my foot in the
door,” Samantha says. “Now, I’m taking advantage of the opportunity.”

Guevara helped another of our clients who had been sidelined from his career in software
and networking by illness and familial crisis and was feeling rusty. Guevara helped connect
him to an employer who was willing to take advantage of the on-the-job training program. Six
months later, “I have my old life back and I love my job,” the client says from the comfort of
his own apartment.

Antonio Vigil, Job Link’s employment and training supervisor, understands the value of
collaboration and community engagement. He recruited Steve Herron from Exchange Bank,
who in turn reached out to his Santa Rosa Rotary Club members. The members give
generously, which allows the pilot program to provide gift cards and other supportive
services, but equally as important, club members provide direct support to the participants in
the form of mock interviews and real pep talks.

Does a client need a pair of black shoes to complete a uniform? How about bus passes?
What about a gift card to celebrate success? Vigil, with the funds provided by the Rotary
Club, can immediately help get what a participant might need to get or start a job.

Thirty people are working today, one for every year Samantha spent on the street.

Eileen Morris is enrichment services manager at COTS, a social service organization in
Petaluma.

You can send letters to the editor to letters@pressdemocrat.com.

Page 63 of 64



4/4

The views and opinions expressed in this commentary are those of the author and don’t
necessarily reflect The Press Democrat editorial board’s perspective. The opinion and news
sections operate separately and independently of one another.

Page 64 of 64


	110922 WIB Agenda
	Minutes for 09.14.22 WIB Meeting REVIEWED
	11-09-22 WIB Agenda Packet - For Review
	110922 WIB Agenda
	WIB DEIB Review Presentation
	 �Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Efforts
	Review of Set Priorities
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Have questions or ideas?�Contact Us!

	WIB DEIB - White Supremacy Culture - Still Here by Tema Okun
	11-2022 Quarterly progress report WIB ELL IET
	11-2022 Quarterly progress report WIB Justice Involved
	11-2022 Quarterly progress report WIB Foster Youth
	11-2022 Quarterly progress report WIB Homeless Pilot
	Progress report WIB Apprenticeship 11-9
	Close to Home_ Finding work, hope and a new home




